
 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://www.box.net/shared/60q5e63h4x and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 1 of 20 

 
 

CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE 
COMMON COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 19, 2008 

 
 
The Common Council of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana, met in the Council Chambers at 
City Hall on November 19, 2008, at the hour of 6:30 p.m. 
 
Mayor Dennis called the meeting to order and presided. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was repeated. 
 
Present:   Bunder, Burch, Hunt, Keen, Roales, and Thomas. 
 
Also present were City Attorney Burns, Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes, City Engineer Buck, Police 
Chief Dombkowski, Street Commissioner Downey, Fire Chief Drew, Human Resources Director 
Foster, WWTU Director Henderson, Parks Superintendent Payne, and Director of Development 
Poole. 
 
Mayor Dennis said I guess this would be the appropriate time to formally announce that 
Councilor Truitt has officially resigned from the West Lafayette City Council.  I’ll go ahead and 
read his letter real quickly: 
 

Dear Mayor Dennis, 
It is with mixed emotions that I send you this letter, pursuant to Indiana Code 5-8-4-5.  
I do hereby resign as Councilor at Large of the West Lafayette Common Council, 
upon taking the oath of office as State Representative of District 26 with the Indiana 
House of Representatives.  I have enjoyed my time representing this great City, and I 
look forward to continuing that representation in a different capacity. 
Sincerely, 
Randy 
 

I think it goes without saying that Randy has contributed significantly to this City and to this 
legislative body.  He will be missed in that capacity, and I look forward to working with him in his 
new capacity. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
Ordinance No. 28-08 (Amended)  An Ordinance Setting The  2009 City Budget And Setting The 
2009 Tax Levy On Property And Tax Rate (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Councilor Keen read Ordinance No. 28-08 (Amended) by title and moved that it be passed on 
second and final reading, and that the vote be by roll call.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Burch. 
 
Mayor Dennis said before we start the regular discussion, I’d like to call up Mr. Jim Treat.  He 
has some, I guess, relevant information in regards to the passage of budgets, and especially 
how that applies with the recent legislation, H.B. 1001.   
 
Mr. Jim Treat [O.W. Krohn & Associates] said the Mayor had asked me to clarify for you all—not 
that we’re hoping that this is the case, but, in the event that you wouldn’t adopt a budget this 

Subject to approval at the January 5, 2009, Common Council meeting. 

Internet
Text Box
                           Approved at the January 5, 2009, Common Council meeting.



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 2 of 20 

 

evening, because we’re right down to the deadline where it has to be done and filed—what 
happens.  Because there are some very specific rules, and it varies by type of taxing unit.  But 
the rules for a city or a town, if you simply fail to adopt a budget, unfortunately you don’t get to 
just keep what you’ve got today.  There’s some specific rules that apply, and, unfortunately, and 
because of the H.B. 1001 affecting AVs next year, it’s going to have a very negative impact on 
any folks who choose not to adopt budgets this year.  The rule is that you will get the lesser of 
your current year tax rate or levy.  Let me explain.  I had them bring this board in, because I just 
think it’s a lot easier, it is for me.  I’m a numbers person.  Let me give you a few numbers, so 
you can see how clear this is.  The timing’s very unfortunate, but here’s our 2008 numbers.  
Your Certified AV for the City is a little over a billion dollars, about $1.1 billion.  Your true tax 
rate—and this is the City’s total rate—the tax rate currently this year is $0.71, $0.7182.  When 
you apply that to your AV, divide by $100, you levy dollars this year will be around $7.9 million in 
total for General Fund, debt levy, everything.  So that’s the baseline that they’re using for this 
measurement.  If we don’t adopt a budget tonight, what’s going to happen is they’re going to 
say—they’re going to look first to what your AV is next year.  Of course, we don’t know what that 
number is.  But, in preparing the budgets this year, DLGF has been telling everybody—I’ve 
heard anywhere from 20% to 35% reduction, somewhere in that range, of your AVs.  And that’s 
how everybody’s budget’s been prepared this year.  So you advertise a very high tax rate and 
you assume a very low AV, and that’s because of a new Homestead Deduction.  AVs for 
residential property are going to drop dramatically next year.  We don’t know exactly how much, 
but it’s going to be pretty dramatic.  So let’s say, because of that, your AV drops 25%.  So we’re 
in the big question mark.  In 2009, if your AV drops 25%, you’re down to $834 million in AV.  
Now what would normally happen is you’d get to raise the same levy dollars or that plus 4% 
more, how it works in the normal process.  And they’ll just figure out a higher tax rate to apply to 
that AV, and you’ll be revenue neutral, in essence.  But in this case, because of this rule, they’re 
going to say, “Well, we’re going to apply last year’s tax rate, the current year tax rate, to that 
levy.”  And if you apply the tax rate to that levy, your property taxes, what you’re going to collect 
will be $5.9 million, a $2 million swing, a permanent loss.  It’s humongous.  Now that varies a 
lot.  I just kind of played with some numbers.  If it’s a 15% drop in AV, it’s about a $1.1 million 
loss.  If it’s 30%, we’re talking $2.3 million or $2.4 million.  I kept looking at this, not believing it 
makes sense.  The reason it makes sense is what happens is  DLGF is really good at trying to 
make sure that cities and towns don’t ever get any kind of windfall.  If you’re in the situation 
where you had a lot of growth and next year you got a big jump in your AV just because of 
normal growth, normally that gets neutralized out through a lower tax rate.  But if you don’t 
adopt a budget, they’re not going to reward you by letting you keep that tax rate that you’ve got 
now and applying the (tax rate) line to a much higher AV.  They want to go back and say, “No, 
we’re not going to do that.  We’ve going to go back to this year’s levy.”  In that case, this would 
be a low number and you have retained your levy because of normal growth.  But because of 
this timing of H.B. 1001, AVs are going to drop next year—we just don’t know how much—it 
would be a killer for you guys, and you really have to come to some sense of what you want to 
do.  And that’s what the Mayor had wanted me to make sure that everybody understood, as you 
continue to deliberate. 
 
Mayor Dennis said scary stuff.  Thank you, Jim [Mr. Treat].  Discussion? 
 
Councilor Roales said Mr. Mayor.  I’d like to make a motion to reduce the Clerk-Treasurer 100 
Personnel Services by $5,000. 
 
Councilor Bunder said second. 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 3 of 20 

 

 
Mayor Dennis said it’s been motioned and seconded to reduce the Clerk-Treasurer’s fund— 
 
Councilor Roales said so Clerk-Treasurer item 100, Personnel Services— 
 
City Attorney Burns said reduce by $5,000. 
 
Councilor Keen said do you have a specific reason why you would like to do that? 
 
Councilor Roales said sure.  I would like to eliminate the overtime in Account Number 130, and 
the reasoning being that this is not a public safety function and so that, you know, it would be 
expected through management and just through, you know, routine operations, we would be 
able to eliminate that overtime spending. 
 
Councilor Burch said Paul [Councilor Roales], how did you come up with that figure? 
 
Councilor Roales said it was the current overtime amount listed in the Clerk-Treasurer’s 
documents that she presented for account 130.  
 
Mayor Dennis said Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes]. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said would you like me to address that? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the reason why we have overtime is that our office is not staffed to 
be able to handle some of the major accounting milestones year round.  The office is sufficiently 
understaffed that, with some overtime, we can cover vacations and time periods in which we 
have to turn around major financial milestones.  We’re typical of virtually every financial office 
that experiences these peak times during the financial processing cycle of the year.  Like all 
other departments, we have to cover absences due to vacation and illness, and because of our 
schedule, we don’t have the luxury of oftentimes deferring performing tasks.  We actually have 
to perform them, whether we’re close to full staff or not.  That is why there’s overtime in the 
budget. 
 
Mayor Dennis said historically, do we spend that down?   
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said as you can see from the history that you were all provided for all 
the line items, it has varied from year to year, whether we have needed actually a bit more than 
that.  Last year, we were underexpended by about $1,700, although in the prior year, we were 
over by $385. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
Councilor Bunder said I don’t know if I should direct this to the Mayor or to Judy [Clerk-
Treasurer Rhodes].  Would it not be possible to return to the City Council for an additional 
appropriation at a different time of the year?  For example, if we, for some reason, needed 
overtime next October, could you not then return to the City Council and ask for an additional 
appropriation? 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 4 of 20 

 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said that’s certainly one of the ways that the need to fund that account 
can be addressed. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so we have a motion and a second on an amendment.  We’ll need a roll call 
vote on that amendment, if there’s no further discussion. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I should also tell the Council that there’s a great likelihood I would 
need that expenditure because, in fact, the vacancy in my office was not filled, it was cut from 
next year’s budget, and it’s very likely that there won’t be less need or no need for that overtime.  
There are many ways to address this issue, Councilor Bunder. 
 
Councilor Keen said can I make one point of clarification, if I’m looking at this correctly.  Your 
motion is to reduce by $5,000— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said but the budget is actually $4,000— 
 
Councilor Keen said exactly. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the amended budget is $4,000.  Did you want to correct that to 
reflect the current amended budget which you received? 
 
Mayor Dennis said Paul [Councilor Roales]? 
 
Councilor Roales said yes, that would be fine.  I’m looking through files to check that. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so, then, correct me if I’m wrong, but we have a motion to reduce the 
overtime budget in the Clerk-Treasurer’s account $4,000? 
 
Councilor Roales said correct. 
 
Mayor Dennis said so that’s the motion.  Need a second. 
 
Councilor Bunder said no, I did that. 
 
Mayor Dennis said now continue discussion. 
 
Councilor Keen said Mr. Mayor. 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Keen said well, I can see where the Proposed 2009 has gone down $1,000 from the 
$5,000 original, which is a 20% reduction.  I can see where the Clerk-Treasurer has already 
addressed part of the issue that Paul [Councilor Roales] is talking about, and so I don’t know 
that it would be prudent to eliminate that line item completely.  And, yes, she can get an 
additional appropriation later on, but then if we start going there, then, you know, we could start 
saying that about every line item in the budget as well.  I wouldn’t see that as being necessarily 
a prudent thing to do at this point in time. 
 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 5 of 20 

 

Mayor Dennis said okay. 
 
The roll call vote on the amendment: 

AYE NAY 
Bunder Burch 
Roales Hunt 
Thomas Keen 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the vote on the amendment fails for lack of a majority. 
 
Councilor Roales said point of order.  Does the Mayor vote on a tie, or how does that work? 
 
City Attorney Burns said the Mayor would vote on a tie, that is correct. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said that’s his prerogative. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay, I’ll vote no.  So now we’re back.  Ordinance No. 28-08 (Amended). 
 
Councilor Roales said Mr. Mayor, I’d like a motion to reduce the Clerk-Treasurer’s Item 300, 
Other Services and Charges, by $79,095.   
 
Councilor Bunder said second.   
 
Mayor Dennis said motion and second to reduce the Clerk-Treasurer’s budget by $79,095. 
 
Councilor Keen said what line item was that, Paul [Councilor Roales]? 
 
Councilor Roales said that’s in the Ordinance 28-08, that’s line 300, Other Services and 
Charges. 
 
Mayor Dennis said discussion? 
 
Councilor Keen said do you have a reasoning for that one? 
 
Councilor Roales said yes.  Account 322, Travel, the current is $7,500.  The 2008 level funding 
was $4,000, so return that and save $3,500.  Informational Printing, Account 330, the current 
level of funding is $9,500; the 2008 level of funding was $1,500.  Return that, saving $8,000.  
Membership and Dues, Account 391, the current level of funding is $9,195; 2008 level funding 
was $1,600, a savings of $7,595.  Public Relations, the current level of funding is $15,000; 
eliminate that, and times are tight, so save $15,000.  Contract Services, the current level of 
funding is $169,000—I’m sorry, this is Item 394, Contract Services—eliminate the Mayor’s 
Undesignated Earmark and reduce some of the Consulting and Contracts in there, save 
$45,000.  And so that’s where we get to $79,095. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said may I make a comment— 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 6 of 20 

 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said so that people watching can understand why these line items 
appear bigger.  At the Mayor’s request, we’ve consolidated several budgets in City Hall, the 
Mayor’s City Hall budget, the Clerk-Treasurer’s budget into the Clerk-Treasurer’s budget.  This 
was meant to respond to the Mayor’s desire for more direct management of these line items and 
reduce the bureaucracy associated with making disbursements.  Some of the items to which 
he’s suggested cuts don’t represent increases of expenditures.  In fact, in most cases, they 
represent decreases from current year expenditures.  These items don’t exist any more in the 
Mayor’s budget, the City Hall budget. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and if I might add, the logic behind that is we’re trying to make things more 
efficient.  We used to have things spread out throughout the City in little fiefdoms.  What would 
happen is a person would pay a certain portion from one of their operating accounts to cover a 
collective cost.  And it could be something like the lease on a copy machine, where each 
department pays a portion.  What we’ve done is consolidate that.  It makes it more efficient.  
That way, it’s not costing you basically $20 to pay an $11 bill.  So at the end of the day, it’s just 
a way of better managing that particular fund.  Further discussion? 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I ask a question? 
 
Mayor Dennis said sure. 
 
Councilor Hunt said is the Informational Printing the letters to residents that we send out to talk 
about a variety of things, whether it’s wastewater or trash pickup or leaves or— 
 
Mayor Dennis said and legal announcements and— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said look at the detail.  For those watching, the detail has been 
provided for every one of these line items, listing the task or the vendor.  It’s been available for 
the last several months.  For the most part, there have been very few changes to the detail.  I’ll 
read from this.  It involves City newsletters, human resources personnel manuals, insurance 
forms, the City CFAR.  These are all items here, and information was also provided on the level 
of funding for this in 2008, which was, in fact, $12,000.  So the expense for these tasks had 
been reduced to $9,500.  The proposal was to reduce this to $1,500—am I correct? 
 
Councilor Roales said correct. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the Council, of course, may reduce any line item, but it cannot 
increase any line item without the Mayor’s approval at this point.  So, in working together on this 
budget, we need to find a way through, to decide whether you wish to have City newsletters any 
more, or any of these other tasks.  Clearly, you won’t have enough to do any of the items that 
I’ve just enumerated which, of course, you’ve had the detail for several months.   
 
Mayor Dennis said and that’s a pretty decent service that we provide.  Further discussion? 
 
 
 
 
 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 7 of 20 

 

The roll call vote on the amendment: 
AYE NAY 
Bunder Burch 
Roales Hunt 
Thomas Keen 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said three ayes, three nays, the amendment fails because of a tie vote.  
[To the Mayor] Do you wish to vote? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes, the answer is no. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the Mayor is voting no.  The amendment is rejected. 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I make a comment?  I talked to the Mayor quite a lot about moving 
these funds.  I think I talked to you two or three times.  And this is your budget, and that is the 
way you wanted to go.  I’m not sure it’s—I think you have the right to make those decisions in 
putting them in other, and you reassured me that you are the Chief Whatever— 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes.  This is my spending plan. 
 
Councilor Hunt said and this is your spending plan, and so that’s the reason that I voted.  I have 
thought about this, and I have spoken to him considerably.  I believe you told me this is—
although it’s different in Lafayette, because they have a Clerk and an appointed Controller—but 
did you tell me that this is how they do it in Lafayette?  
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Hunt said okay.  That’s my rationale. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I just wanted to inform the Council, particularly the new Council 
members, that the budget fund accounting and departmental accounting has the potential to 
create lots of separate silos.  It can be quite inefficient.  It does nothing in terms of accountability 
or control.  In fact, these invoices and payment disbursements would only have been initiated 
and can only be supported by the Mayor if they’re related to functions he had ordered and 
received.  In fact, the signoff on any departmental budget can be delegated by the Mayor.  I 
don’t know whether there is a full understanding that some of the paperwork is not the 
accountability and control system as a City. 
 
Councilor Burch said Mr. Mayor, I would just like to say that I’m certainly for streamlining and 
more efficiency and more transparency in our City operations. 
 
Mayor Dennis said good.  But, again, I think at the end of the day, just understanding that the 
Clerk-Treasurer basically does not decide how to spend the budget. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes.  The Clerk-Treasurer doesn’t order City newsletters.  But we 
are going to streamline the handling of the billing and the ultimate paper that’s necessary, once 
that expenditure has been duly authorized and the goods and services have been received.   
 
Mayor Dennis said thank you.  Further discussion? 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 8 of 20 

 

 
Councilor Roales said Mr. Mayor, I’d like to make a motion to reduce line item CCD 300, Other 
Services and Charges by $70,000. 
 
Councilor Keen said do we have to vote on the other one first, or did we vote on that? 
 
City Attorney Burns said yes. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said we did, and— 
 
Mayor Dennis said where is it—CCD?  That was how much, Paul [Councilor Roales]? 
 
Councilor Roales said $70,000. 
 
Councilor Bunder said second. 
 
Mayor Dennis said it’s been motioned and seconded that we reduce the Cum Cap Development 
account by $70,000.  Discussion? 
 
Councilor Keen said that was in CCD? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Keen said and you want to reduce the total—? 
 
Councilor Roales said by $70,000.  I’m sorry, that was line 300 of CCD, Other Services and 
Charges.   
 
Mayor Dennis said okay, it’s been motioned and seconded.  Now, discussion. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said can somebody ask him what line item? 
 
Mayor Dennis said which line item specifically, Paul?  And what reduction would you like to 
make? 
 
Councilor Roales said account number 310, Computer Services.  We’ve talked a number of 
times about moving to an in-house information technology staffing, and I’ve discussed this with 
the Mayor.  He’s—I believe you represent your own opinion—but I feel the sooner we do this, 
the more advantageous to the City’s operations that this move would be. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and I’ll go ahead and stand by my explanation.  It’s something that we look 
to doing at some time in the future.  Just right now is not the appropriate time.  We are still in the 
process of trying to unify the existing system that we have.  We have several different operating 
systems within the City, the fiber network isn’t completed yet.  2009 is just not the year to make 
that move, especially with the fiscal uncertainty that we have throughout the State.  Is that it? 
 
Councilor Roales said thank you. 
 
Mayor Dennis said that’s all? 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 9 of 20 

 

 
Councilor Roales said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay.  Further discussion? 
 
The roll call vote on the amendment: 

AYE NAY 
Bunder Burch 
Roales Hunt 
Thomas Keen 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said three ayes, three nays; the amendment fails, because of the tie 
vote.  Do you wish to vote, Mayor? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes.  I vote no. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the amendment fails. 
 
Councilor Roales said Mr. Mayor. 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Roales said I’d like to make the motion to reduce EDIT, line 300, Other Services and 
Charges, by $360,000. 
 
Mayor Dennis said which one was it, Paul [Councilor Roales]? 
 
Councilor Roales said EDIT, line 300, Other Services and Charges.  It’s on page 4 of the 
ordinance. 
 
Mayor Dennis said it’s been motioned— 
 
Councilor Bunder said second. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and seconded.  Discussion? 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I ask a question? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Hunt said according to my notes, with the amended version, this is going down about 
$50,000?  From $1,484,000 to $1,434,000.  Am I correct? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said 300, yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said which line item was it again, Paul [Councilor Roales]? 
 
Councilor Roales said Legal Services was in 2008 it was $50,000, the proposed is $60,000.  I 
would propose returning that to the 2008 level of funding.  And I would propose delaying one 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 10 of 20 

 

year the Phase 2 of the Cumberland Avenue Reconstruction.  The Legal Services returning to 
the 2008 level of funding saves $10,000.  By delaying only one year and still doing the project, 
Phase 2 of Cumberland Avenue would save $350,000. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said so you’re wanting to reduce Consulting? 
 
Councilor Roales said yes, that’s item 312, Consulting. 
 
Mayor Dennis said motion and second.  Further discussion? 
 
Councilor Thomas said Mr. Mayor, may I? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Thomas said Paul [Councilor Roales], in your motion, you want to delay the 
Cumberland Avenue construction project? 
 
Councilor Roales said yes, by one year. 
 
Councilor Thomas said by one year.  Could I ask City Engineer Buck his take on that particular 
statement? 
 
Mayor Dennis said I guess that kind of brings up a point, Paul [Councilor Roales].  Have you 
talked to any of the department heads about your proposed cuts? 
 
Councilor Roales said you know, I think that the majority of the discussion that we’ve had over 
the last six-plus months, I think, the impacts of these cuts are clear.   
 
Mayor Dennis said so you have not talked to any department heads? 
 
Councilor Roales said no. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay, thank you.  Dave [City Engineer Buck]. 
 
City Engineer Buck said the line item that was mentioned is $300,000 to begin the engineering 
on Phase 2.  That’s the center section, from Yeager Road to Salisbury Street.  It’s one of the 
worst sections.  In certain areas it is the worst section.  It’s only going to get worse.  Delaying, 
we will have a good eight to ten percent of inflation when we finally do get to construction, so it’s 
going to just increase our costs if we wait.  I’d like to do it right now. 
 
Councilor Thomas said okay.  Thank you. 
 
City Engineer Buck said thanks. 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I make a comment?  I’ve driven this, and you have to change lanes all 
the time, if I’m correct.  Right?   
 
Mayor Dennis said dodging poles. 
 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 11 of 20 

 

Councilor Burch said yes, and don’t fall in to the pot holes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
The roll call vote on the amendment: 

AYE NAY 
Bunder Burch 
Roales Hunt 
 Keen 
 Thomas 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said four nays, two ayes, the amendment fails. 
 
Mayor Dennis said Ordinance No. 28-08 (Amended).  Further discussion? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Mayor Dennis said Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes], call the roll. 
 
Councilor Bunder said let me—I’ll do this as a prologue then, to my vote.  How’s that?  Not 
discussion.  I’ll be voting against the budget as presented.  I do not believe that, in this 
recession, it is appropriate for us to enact an excessive levy.  I don’t believe that in this 
particular economic situation that’s a good idea.  Personally, throughout the budget process, I 
have found that this is not, in fact, a transparent process, that the budget went away for a few 
months and then reemerged, changed significantly from what we had seen earlier in the 
summer.  I’m also concerned about the drain—if it becomes a pun, I apologize—the drain on the 
Wastewater Treatment Utility that is implied in this budget.  I believe that the Democrats, at 
some political risk, built up the Wastewater Treatment Utility’s reserves, so that we could move 
forward with an exemplary sewage treatment program.  For those reasons, I’ll be voting no on 
this budget. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I have some concerns also about the use of Wastewater funds.  Although 
I’ve been assured—Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes], I don’t want to paraphrase you, but I believe 
in the Budget and Finance Committee you said that the consultant— didn’t Mr. Skomp [Crowe 
Horwath] mention that we might have to raise rates—but if we’re careful, we won’t have to?  Or 
is that—did I paraphrase you right? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I think I might better review what he explained and which the 
report contains, which is looking out to 2012, even with no increase in revenues, they forecast 
that both the capital plan of the Utility and operations could be funded.  However, they 
anticipated that, during this period of time, that most likely there would be a need for revenue 
adjustments due to increased stormwater activities and action on the stormwater ordinance, 
which has yet to have a fee schedule enacted by the Council, as well as review the trash fees.  
So, although the plan works even with no revenue increase, practically, he noted that he would 
expect there would be review of the revenues related to some other activities.  Is that helpful? 
 
Councilor Hunt said okay.  It is a concern.  I know we’ve always used Wastewater to fund part of 
the Mayor’s salary and part of this person’s and part of some other ones, and I do understand 
that there’s been some tradition.  But the big change does concern me, and I just want to say 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 12 of 20 

 

that I hope we don’t have to make major rate fees. 
 
Mayor Dennis said I respect that.  Thank you, Ann [Councilor Hunt].  But, again, remember, the 
budget has been cut and the budget is lower.  Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes], if you would, 
please, go ahead and call the roll. 
 
Councilor Hunt said what are we voting on? 
 
Councilor Bunder said Ordinance 28-08. 
 
Councilor Hunt said okay. 
 
Mayor Dennis said this is Ordinance No. 28-08 (Amended). 
 
The roll call vote: 

AYE NAY 
Burch Bunder 
Hunt Roales 
Keen Thomas 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said three ayes, three nays, it’s a tie vote. 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the Mayor votes to break the tie in the affirmative.  The budget is 
adopted. 
 
Ordinance No. 28-08 (Amended) passed on final reading, 4-3, with the Mayor casting the tie-
breaking vote. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said is that correct, City Attorney? 
 
City Attorney Burns said absolutely.  Your counting is accurate. 
 
Ordinance No. 29-08  An Ordinance To Fix The Salaries Of Appointed Officers, Employees, And 
Members Of The Police And Fire Departments Of The City Of West Lafayette, Indiana, For The 
Year 2009 (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Councilor Keen read Ordinance No. 29-08 by title and moved that it be passed on second and 
final reading, and that the vote be by roll call.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Burch. 
 
Mayor Dennis said discussion? 
 
Councilor Bunder said it’s kind of fun to go first, because this can also be the way into my vote.  
I will oppose Ordinance 29-08.  I drive the streets of West Lafayette and everyone looks pretty 
fat and happy, thanks to Purdue University and a number of significant employers.  The only 
people who will be less happy in the new year will be the employees of the City of West 
Lafayette.  The budget does not allow for a real increase in their wages, and the new insurance 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 13 of 20 

 

plan means that for many, particularly at the lower end of the income scale, their paychecks just 
got lighter.  As a Democrat, I can’t approve that. 
 
Councilor Roales said I’ll just provide a little bit of commentary on how I will vote.  I will vote no.  
The reason being, I’ve disagreed with giving a 3% raise but not paying a 3% PERF contribution.  
This costs the City $60,000, by giving a 3% raise to retired Police and Fire Department officers, 
who did honorably serve the City, but I think it’s unequitable to give retired members of our 
Police and Fire not a raise but give the serving officers, they don’t get a raise.  I’m sorry, I 
incorrectly stated that.  To give the retired officers of our Police and Fire Department a raise, but 
not the serving officers.  I would love to see, you know, figure out some way to give a raise, and 
I hope we can make some cuts to do that in the future, but that’s my disagreement with this 
ordinance. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I’ll address two issues, just so everyone here has a little 
background, and folks watching at home.  The City has faced enormous increases in health 
insurance costs for our employees.  We actually are one of the few entities that had first-dollar 
coverage available to employees.  There was no deductible.  Since 2004, the cost for employee 
and family coverage package, our most popular package, increased 36%, $4,000 more a year.  
This year, in order to keep the rise in health insurance costs to about 10%, we’ve offered two 
plans, a traditional deductible plan and a health savings account.  We found a way to give those 
health insurance dollars directly to employees, rather than to the insurance company.  Our plan 
has been very well received, and Human Resources Director Diane Foster would probably tell 
you that about 80% to 85% of our employees have voted that the health savings account with 
the City contribution is viewed as a very valued part of their compensation.  Secondly, in terms 
of raises, the situation with civilian and public safety pensions is a bit complex, because we 
have two kinds of public safety pensions, and because the civilian and public safety pensions 
are funded slightly differently and have different benefits.  They, however, are very good 
pension plans.  They’re defined benefit plans.  They’re almost extinct outside of government and 
some major corporations.  The numbers cited are not accurate, but I don’t really think this is a 
discussion about the numbers.  I think it’s a question about the overall compensation package 
for employees and current compensation versus deferred compensation.  The City made a 
substantial increase in the pension package for current public safety officers, as well as retired 
public safety officers, and brought that pension benefit in line with the market.  The civilians’ 
pension plan has been returned to what is more the norm and is no longer quite as rich a 
benefit.  The dollars that were not used—civilians now actually will begin to contribute again to 
their pension plan.  I think most folks would understand that that’s a shared responsibility 
between the employees and the employer.  The City can no longer afford to pay 100% of the 
civilian pension benefit.  The result is that dollars that were available from these adjustments in 
that form of compensation were used to provide a better health insurance benefit to employees, 
and that has been, in fact, very welcomed and valued by employees.  It’s a benefit, in fact, that 
is particularly important for employees at our lower wage scale, because with a health savings 
account and the City’s contribution, an employee who makes $35,000 and an employee who 
makes $60,000 are receiving the same package.  When you give a raise to an employee who 
makes $60,000 and the same percent to an employee who makes $35,000, that’s quite a 
different number of dollars that flow.  So, in fact, I think it was a very equitable way to use those 
compensation dollars. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and, again, understand that about 80%-plus of the overall budget is 
personnel costs.  In order to turn the ship and get it going in the right direction, to get us out of 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 14 of 20 

 

the deficit spending that we’ve inherited, we have to make some tough decisions, and this is 
one of those. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said this budget is the first budget in five years that is not a deficit 
budget in the General Fund. 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I make a comment? 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
Councilor Hunt said yes, I’d like to make—  I’ve thought long and hard about this, and talked to 
both the Clerk-Treasurer and the Mayor and Diane Foster, the personnel director.  It bothers me 
greatly that the employees are not getting a raise.  In case everyone doesn’t understand, they 
do get a raise on paper, a 3% raise, but this year, the employees are required to pay their PERF 
which is 3%, so it’s a wash, as far as a salary raise.  I would very much like employees to get a 
raise.  The health savings account, it’s my understanding that this is a generous infusion, and I 
like the fact that all employees get the same amount, not just the higher-paid employees get 
more.  Another thing I heard, and sometimes this age group that our employees are in doesn’t 
think about that, but as a retiree who gets Social Security, your Social Security is payments 
when you retire—if there are any when the younger group retires.  But it is based on the salaries 
in each quarter.  So that’s some reassurance to me, that at least the employees will have a little 
higher Social Security base when they get older.  But, like I say, it does worry me a lot about 
this.  It’s my understanding the Mayor sent a memo about the health savings account to all 
employees.  In fact, I had him mail it to Councilors earlier this week.  He also sent a memo to all 
employees about there would be a lack of real raises.  How have employees responded to that? 
 
Mayor Dennis said as an employee— 
 
Councilor Hunt said well, as a group. 
 
Mayor Dennis said nobody likes to hear that.  Like we’ve been preaching this whole year, this is 
one of those tough times.  We are pretty much reflective of the rest of society, and we are going 
to continue down the path of frugality.  We are going to do what we can to get this ship turned in 
the right direction.  And this is just one of those efforts. 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I ask another question, and that is—and I don’t know if you can answer 
this right now—but we did reduce two employees this year, and I would hope we wouldn’t have 
to reduce in force any more.   
 
Mayor Dennis said that’s my hope, too, and I think, as we go further down the agenda and start 
talking about our annexation levy appeal, I think that’s very, very important to remember. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I would not like to reduce—I didn’t like to reduce those two; I wouldn’t like to 
reduce any more.  Thank you. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay.  Further discussion? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 15 of 20 

 

The roll call vote: 
AYE NAY 
Burch Bunder  
Hunt Roales 
Keen Thomas 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said three ayes, three nays.  There’s a tie vote.  Does the Mayor wish 
to vote to break the tie? 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes.  I’ll vote in the affirmative. 
 
Ordinance No. 29-08 passed on final reading, 4-3, with the Mayor casting the tie-breaking vote. 
 
Ordinance No. 30-08 2009 Wastewater Treatment Utility Salary Schedule As Submitted By The 
Board Of Public Works And Safety For Approval By The Common Council Of The City Of West 
Lafayette, Indiana (Presented by the Board of Public Works and Safety) 
 
Councilor Keen read Ordinance No. 30-08 by title and moved that it be passed on second and 
final reading, and that the vote be by roll call.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Burch. 
 
Mayor Dennis said discussion? 
 
Councilor Bunder said I will be voting no for this as well.  I believe it places the Wastewater 
Utility’s previously solid financial future in some jeopardy, and I would wonder if the citizens of 
West Lafayette were to see the number and amount of salary dollars transferred to the 
Wastewater Utility, if they would consider that to be transparent.  I will be voting against this 
ordinance. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion. 
 
Councilor Roales said provide commentary on how my vote will be cast.  I’m concerned that, 
you know, we’ve had a continual slide to transferring to different people’s salaries—percentages 
of salaries—into the Wastewater Treatment Utility.  I’d like to see an overarching philosophy on 
how that is done.  We’ve talked about that in the past.  We haven’t presented one yet.  I’d be 
happy to work with the Mayor and the administration in the coming year to set that, but I’ll be 
voting no on this, because that’s not yet in place. 
 
Mayor Dennis said again, just as a point of order, John Skomp [Crowe Horwath] who did the 
financial review of the Wastewater Utility has assured us that it is fiscally sound.  We’ll be able 
to fund the capital plan all the way up to 2013. Further discussion? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
The roll call vote: 

AYE NAY 
Burch Bunder 
Hunt Roales 
Keen Thomas 

 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 16 of 20 

 

Mayor Dennis said I vote yes. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the Mayor votes aye.  Ordinance No. 30-08 passes. 
 
Ordinance No. 30-08 passed on final reading, 4-3, with the Mayor casting the tie-breaking vote. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Resolution No. 21-08 A Resolution To Reduce The 2009 Budget [Clerk-Treasurer, City 
Services] (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Councilor Keen read Resolution No. 21-08 by title and moved that it be passed on first and only 
reading, and that the vote be by roll call.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Burch. 
 
Mayor Dennis said discussion? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
The roll call vote: 

AYE NAY 
Bunder  
Burch  
Hunt  
Keen  
Roales  
Thomas  

 
Resolution No. 21-08 passed on first and only reading, 6-0. 
 
Resolution No. 22-08 A Resolution Authorizing The Filing Of An Appeal for Excessive Levy 
(Submitted by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Councilor Keen read Resolution No. 22-08 by title and moved that it be passed on first and only 
reading, and that the vote be by roll call.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Burch. 
 
Mayor Dennis said any discussion?  Mr. Jim Treat [O.W. Krohn & Associates] is here to respond 
to questions or to present, whichever. 
 
Mr. Treat said I think we’ve been through this, so I’m not going to go through a bunch of 
numbers for your folks.  You understand quite well what we’re doing, but for the public, let me 
just highlight that this annexation was enacted in 2005, effective in 2006.  It did require the City 
to provide the same services, same level of services, to those folks in the annexed area as the 
rest of the City—of course, the costly ones are mainly our Police and Fire—effective in August 
of ’07.  All those things were done previously.  At that time, the decision was made to put 
together a temporary fire station, to temporarily staff it by hiring three additional firemen and sort 
of moving other Fire personnel around the City to try to keep that going.  Also, the Police 
Department, by adding a fourth patrolling district and adding three officers to help be able to 
cover a fourth district and still cover the rest of the City.  So those things were all done prior to 
2008.  What was not done was any facility in which to fund those.  In late 2007 and through the 
end of this year, the City will have spent down about $750,000 of its reserves to fund those 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 17 of 20 

 

operating costs.  Without some kind of other revenue source, you will not be able to continue to 
do that.  So it goes back to the Mayor’s point about keeping the staffing or not keeping it.  This 
resolution allows us to file the levy appeal.  This doesn’t mean we’re going to get it; it’s certainly 
not the final say, but it allows us to go down to the State and present this argument about why 
these costs are needed, why they’re unfunded, and what the impact is going to be.  Now I 
understand there will be some tax rate impact, and it’s not a good time, and it’s not a good 
thing, but there’s nothing I can do about that.  Those are the facts of the situation.  The issue is 
services to the City, what’s being provided now, what kind of services do you want to maintain 
the same, do you want to improve them.  Those are really the issues we’re talking about here, 
and we do have to balance that with the, you know, the impact on the citizens.  So we’re asking 
for approval of this resolution so we can file it, present our filing to the State, and get their 
approval for an adjustment.  We have to ask for up to $600,000.  I want to clarify.  In this levy, 
the City’s already received about $94,000 in relief for that annexation, an automatic adjustment.  
So it’ll be more like—if they would approve it—about a $500,000 increase in the levy, and think 
we were estimating around a potential $0.04 tax rate increase.  Those are the facts of the 
situation and what you have to come to decision on, I think.  
 
Mayor Dennis said but tax rates are going to go down for homeowners? 
 
Mr. Treat said tax rates are going to go down for everyone, because of the school rates, the 
school general fund rates, the transportation rates, and the County welfare rates coming out.   
So there will be a shift, and then tax payments—rates are the fooler next year.  I mean, that’s 
the thing that’s kind of—you know, it really depends.  You want to know what your tax bill is 
going to do, and the way this bill’s been structured, it’s estimated that homeowners might 
receive a 20% to 30% reduction in their taxes, regardless of what the rate is.  I guess, from that 
standpoint, if there’s ever a better time to have adjustments that will otherwise increase your tax 
amounts, this would be a good time to do that.   
 
Mayor Dennis said how much of an impact is that going to have on our taxes? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said well, I will answer a little bit, because I want to refer the 
Councilmembers to the information they have received.  Even if we are able to receive this 
appeal, we will not collect any more than $79,000 than we’ve collected this year, because our 
levy will be cut from other provisions of H.B. 1001 related to pension relief for the old pensions.  
So the additional collection of taxes on the public is almost negligible.  In fact, because of cuts 
that are occurring with rates, it is, in fact, a time when taxpayers will still see their bills go down, 
even with the appeal.  That certainly would not have been the case previously. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
Councilor Burch said I just want to say, for the folks in District 4, that, unfortunately, the City has 
inherited an ill-advised annexation predicated on an unrealistic projection of housing starts and 
sales.  That annexation has proven to be a millstone around our necks.  The deficit this 
annexation has created is equivalent to the budget of one City department.  To put it bluntly, we 
just cannot afford the annexation, unless we obtain this excessive levy appeal.  I campaigned 
on keeping taxes low.  Any tax increase goes against Republican principles.  The annexation 
means the tax increase or a drastic reduction in City services.  Ladies and gentlemen, we have 
been put between a rock and a hard place, and I want to say that I have no choice but to vote in 
favor of this resolution, authorizing the filing of an appeal for excessive levy.  Thank you. 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 18 of 20 

 

 
Mayor Dennis said just, out of curiosity, Jim [Mr. Treat], what happens—I mean, how is that 
perceived if it’s not a unanimous vote at the DLGF? 
 
Mr. Treat said the way the forms are set up, actually everyone needs to sign it, and there’s a 
“AYE” column and a “NAY” column, and there’s also a section on there where we need to 
explain, in writing—we’ll need to have written objections and they will be provided—as part of 
the filing.  Obviously, that doesn’t help the case, but that’s the point of having everybody heard 
and speak out.  So any objecting members, dissenting members, will have their specific 
objections noted and the reasons for them in the filing as well. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and this process is very similar to a hearing, correct? 
 
Mr. Treat said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said okay.  Further discussion? 
 
Councilor Hunt said yes, I have a few comments.  First of all, I was here last year—or two years 
ago—when we voted to annex, and I very much disagree that the annexation was ill-advised, 
with lots of advisors very knowledgeable.  The theory is that one increases their assessed value 
by annexation.  That’s what cities do, that’s how they grow, and we’re boxed in. Also, how we 
grow is by annexation.  I think Lafayette is annexing some areas soon.  I think the historic loss 
in home sales—it’s historic.  I mean, it doesn’t happen very often, and so I strongly disagree 
that it was ill-advised.  We did all—we had a fiscal plan, and it looked good, and we had the 
legal amount of property owners—yes, property owners, yes, that’s the phrase—sign it, and we 
had many hearings.  There were a few people that were against it, not all of them lived in the 
City.  I voted for this annexation last year.  I voted for the annexation excess levy.  It was 
unfortunate there was an error.  Errors sometimes happen.  I wish it hadn’t.  Like I say, I 
strongly disagree that the annexation was ill-advised.  Strongly. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
Councilor Roales said Mr. Mayor. 
 
Mayor Dennis said yes. 
 
Councilor Roales said Councilor Hunt referred to a memo that was distributed to City employees 
earlier this year, and in that was said, “The financial bailout, plummeting stocks, the falling 
dollar, increased unemployment were all signs of a worried economy.”  I agree with that 
sentiment, fully, and so I’m concerned Ordinance 28-08, the budget for 2009 already included 
the tax increase.  I’m concerned, yet an excess tax increase—again, an undue burden on our 
citizens—our consultant here tonight had mentioned 4%.  I mean, that’s a significant tax 
increase.   
 
Mayor Dennis said $0.04. 
 
Councilor Roales said $0.04. 
 
Mayor Dennis said four pennies. 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 19 of 20 

 

 
Councilor Roales said yes. 
 
Mayor Dennis said and the budget for ’09 was lower, Paul [Councilor Roales]. 
 
Councilor Roales said yes.  So I’m concerned about that increase and that’s why I’ll be voting 
no on this. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion? 
 
Councilor Hunt said may I ask another question.  I don’t know how many of you received your 
tax bills, but I got mine Saturday, and my assessed valuation—I don’t know why—but it went up 
maybe, I don’t know, maybe 18%, 20%, and my tax bill went significantly down.  It was not 
easy—I’m sure it will difficult for many to pay both of those tax bills by November whatever, or 
December whatever, but again, my assessed value on my home went up, and my tax bill went 
significantly down. 
 
Mayor Dennis said further discussion?   
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
The roll call vote: 

AYE NAY Abstain 
Burch Bunder Roales 
Hunt Thomas  
Keen   

 
When his name was called to cast his vote, Councilor Bunder said, while noting the irony of the 
Republican Party proposing an excessive levy, I vote no on Resolution 22-08. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said we have three ayes, two nays, and an abstention. 
 
City Attorney Burns said fails. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the annexation appeal resolution fails, because we do not have a 
majority voting in favor of it. 
 
Resolution No. 22-08 failed. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
►Councilor Keen said Mr. Mayor, I do have one item.  Good news.  The Fire Department has 
informed me that the City of West Lafayette has been approved for a grant from Homeland 
Security for the maximum amount that was available of $142,000.  The unfortunate part of it is, 
if you want to call it unfortunate, is that it is a 90-10 grant, which means we have to invest 
$14,000 in return to obtain $128,000.  This grant is for new air packs, SCBA units that are 
greatly needed within the Fire Department.  So, good news. 
 
►Councilor Hunt said I have one.  There’s a revision of a subdivision in my district at the corner 
of Northwestern and Cherry.  There was supposed to be an APC meeting on that this evening, 



COMMON COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 19, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All Board of Works Agendas, Minutes, and documents are available on the Home Page at http://www.westlafayette.in.gov  
or by going to http://public.box.net/clerk and clicking on the date of the Council meeting. 

 
page 20 of 20 

 

and it was postponed until, I believe, it’s December 17.  So they will still allow discussion on that 
proposed revision of the subdivision there, called the Schowe Subdivision or Schowe Project, at 
Northwestern and Cherry.  And the message came out kind of late.  I sent an email to as many 
of my neighborhood association people as I knew their address and also to Hills and Dales 
Neighborhood Association, but it was relatively late in the afternoon.  I didn’t see the sign until 
this morning, but it was postponed, because the sign wasn’t posted early enough.  So I don’t 
know when it was posted, but I saw it this morning. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business at this time, Councilor Keen moved for adjournment and the 
meeting adjourned, the time being 7:33 p.m. 




